
 
 
 

Charitable Trust Board 
 
 
 
 
 

Date: Wednesday, 28th October, 2020 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: Virtual Meeting – Public Access via YouTube 

https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil  
 
 
Councillors: Councillor Paul Crossley (Chair), Councillor Rob Appleyard, Councillor Paul 
Myers, Councillor Mark Roper and Councillor Joanna Wright 
 
Independent Member: Graham Page 
 
Chief Executive and other appropriate officers 
Press and Public 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTES: 
 

Marie Todd 
Democratic Services 
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG  
Telephone: 01225 394414 
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk  
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk 

https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil


NOTES: 
 
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows: 
 
Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1 
 
2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above.  
 
3. Recording at Meetings:- 
 
The Council will broadcast the images and sounds live via the internet 
https://youtube.com/bathnescouncil 
 
The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its social media site or share with 
other organisations, such as broadcasters. 
 
4. Public Speaking at Meetings 
 
The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. 
 
Advance notice is required not less than two full working days before the meeting. This 
means that for meetings held on Wednesdays notice must be received in Democratic 
Services by 5.00pm the previous Friday.  
 
Further details of the scheme can be found at: 
 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942 
 
5. Supplementary information for meetings 
 
Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings 
 
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505 

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
https://youtube.com/bathnescouncil
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


 

 

Charitable Trust Board - Wednesday, 28th October, 2020 
 

at 2.00 pm in the Virtual Meeting - Zoom - Public Access via YouTube 
https://www.youtube.com/bathnescouncil 

 
A G E N D A 

 

1.   WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION  

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate: 

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare. 

(b) The nature of their interest. 

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests) 

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting. 

4.   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  

 The Chair will announce any items of urgent business accepted since the agenda was 
prepared under the Access to Information provisions. 

5.   ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  

6.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2020.  

7.   ALICE PARK TRUST UPDATE  

 To receive a verbal update from the Chair of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee, Cllr 
Rob Appleyard, including: 
 

• 10-year plan for the Alice Park Trust to become financially sustainable. 

• Community Engagement Model for the Trust. 

8.   ALICE PARK - ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES (Pages 11 - 12) 

 To consider the attached paper which has been submitted by Graham Page, 
Independent Member of the Board. 



9.   FUTURE MEETING DATES  

 To consider the following possible dates for future meetings: 
 
Weds 27 January – 2.30pm or Weds 3 February – 2.30pm 
Weds 7 July or Weds 14 July – 2.30pm 

 
The Democratic Services Officer for this meeting is Marie Todd who can be contacted on  
01225 394414. 
 
 

 



 
1 

Charitable Trust Board- Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 

BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET 
 
MINUTES OF CHARITABLE TRUST BOARD MEETING 
 
Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 
Present: Councillors Paul Crossley (Chair), Rob Appleyard, Paul Myers, Mark Roper and 
Joanna Wright 
 
 

 
12    WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS  

 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
 

13    EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE  
 
The Democratic Services Officer read out the emergency evacuation procedure. 
 

14    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTION  
 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

15    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16    TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  
 
There was no urgent business. 
 

17    ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC - TO RECEIVE DEPUTATIONS, STATEMENTS, 
PETITIONS OR QUESTIONS  
 
Mr Graham Page, Independent Member of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee 
submitted a number of questions.  A copy of the questions and responses is 
attached as Appendix 1 to these minutes. 
 

18    MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF  11 JULY 2019  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 July were confirmed and signed as a correct 
record. 
 

19    ALICE PARK TRUST  
 
Mandy Bishop, Director of Environment Services, presented the report which set out 

three options for the future governance of the Alice Park Trust: 

• Sole trusteeship 

• Shared trusteeship 

• Company limited by guarantee 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



 

 
2 

Charitable Trust Board- Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 

Derek Swift, who was one of the co-sponsors of the proposal put forward to transfer 

responsibility for the Trust to an independent community- led initiative spoke on this 

item.  He disagreed with the conclusion set out in the report that the retention of the 

current model represents the lowest risk.  He stated that the Council cannot be 

worse off because it already provides a large subsidy to the Trust.  He pointed out 

that under a company by guarantee the Council would have a diminished voice but 

that this was a negative aspect for the Council and not necessarily for the Trust.  The 

aim would be to ensure that, over time, the level of subsidy provided by the Council 

decreased as long-term sustainability was very important.  The structure that he had 

proposed provided for specialists and a “friends” group.  He also queried the 

assumptions in the report about the provision of public conveniences and the tennis 

court hire income.  

Graham Page, independent member of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee, 

referred to the public statement that he had submitted.  He outlined the three main 

points – management, voting and financial arrangements.  He felt that under the 

current governance arrangements it appeared that the Council is running the park 

rather than an independent Trust. 

Mandy Bishop, Director of Environment Services, stated that this is a strategic issue 

for the Charitable Trust Board to consider, in particular, how far the Council wishes 

to hand over control to an outside organisation.  She responded to the issues raised 

by Mr Swift stating that her understanding was that the break clause for the public 

convenience contract was 12 months for the whole Council contract.  She 

acknowledged that the assumption made on tennis court income was based on 2018 

figure and explained that there would soon be a new model for the tennis provision. 

Cllr Appleyard thanked the two public speakers for their contribution.  He stated that 

the Sub-Committee now has a clear vision for Alice Park and that the Councillors 

involved have a great deal of experience.  As Chair of the Sub-Committee he did his 

best to accommodate all views.  He suggested that a 10-year plan should be 

produced for the park with the aim of increasing the income stream and ultimately to 

remove the need for a Council subsidy. 

Although there is a cost for providing the public conveniences in the park this covers 

two cleans per day, consumables, building maintenance and security.  He stated that 

the Sub-Committee would be keen to create a small management team for the park, 

which would be open to the community, to undertake operational tasks such as 

event bookings. 

The new offer for tennis court provision will provide good quality facilities.  Cllr 

Appleyard was optimistic for the future of the park and noted that it is very well 

supported within the local community.  The creation of a circular path around the 

park has proved very popular.  It is now important to focus on improving the 

children’s play area.   

Cllr Myers pointed out the any law and structure should serve the purpose of an 

organisation and stressed that Councillors are here to serve the community.  He 

recognised the frustration of the public, officers and councillors who have been 

involved with the governance of the park.  He stated that the Sub-Committee is 

listening to the views of the public and welcomed the opportunity to work with them. 

Page 6



 

 
3 

Charitable Trust Board- Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 

He pointed out that the Trust is currently not financially independent and that it had 

originally ended up being administered by the Council for this reason.  He felt that it 

could be difficult for an outside organisation to be financially viable.  However, it 

would be a mistake to ignore the energy of the community and there should be a 

commitment to tackle any issues that arise. 

He proposed that there should be a round table management committee structure 

enabling everyone to work together to ensure that the Trust serves the people. 

The Legal Services Manager explained that the Council currently administers the 

Trust through the Alice Park Sub-Committee.  The Local Government and Housing 

Act 1989 Section 13 does not permit co-opted members to have a vote on such a 

body.  The ultimate decision must be taken by the Council unless it divests itself of 

the Trusteeship.  Day to day operational decisions could be made by a management 

committee but strategic decisions must be taken by the Council as sole corporate 

Trustee. 

Cllr Myers noted that a management group could work up a plan and bring it forward 

to the Sub-Committee for a final decision.  Community engagement is important 

although it was accepted that decisions must still be taken formally. 

On motion by Cllr Appleyard, seconded by Cllr Myers it was RESOLVED 

unanimously: 

(1) To note the report. 

 

(2) To agree to retain the sole trusteeship delivery model for the governance of 

the Alice Park Trust. 

 

(3) To ask the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee to produce a 10-year plan for the 

Trust with the aim of becoming financially sustainable.  Consultation on the 

proposed plan should take place with the local community. 

 

(4) To thank the local community for their support and to ask the Alice Park Trust 

Sub-Committee to work with them to develop the existing volunteering 

arrangements to achieve greater community engagement and involvement.  

To request the Sub-Committee to propose a suitable community engagement 

model for consideration at the next meeting of the Charitable Trust Board. 

 
20    ALICE PARK TRUST SUB-COMMITTEE - ANNUAL REPORT  

 
The Board considered the Annual Report from the Alice Park Trust.  Cllr Rob 
Appleyard presented the report and thanked officers for all their work to support the 
Trust.  He specifically thanked Marie Todd, Democratic Services Officer and Michael 
Hewitt, Legal Services Manager and previous members Cllrs Geoff Ward and Lin 
Patterson. 
 
Graham Page, independent member of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee, 
expressed concern that the co-opted independent members do not have voting 
rights.  He suggested that this issue could be referred to the Charity Commission for 
consideration. 

Page 7



 

 
4 

Charitable Trust Board- Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 

 
Derek Swift, a member of the public, stated that he believed that the accounts for the 
Trust were incorrect and did not comply with the relevant charity legislation.   
 
The Democratic Services Officer stated that the Head of Management Accounts had 
responded to concerns expressed by Mr Swift stating that “this is a matter of 
presentation and that there was not a material error in the accounts that would 
require re-statement.” 
 
The Chair, Cllr Crossley asked the finance officers to respond to the concerns 
raised.  If necessary, the matter could be considered at the next Alice Park Trust 
Sub-Committee meeting.  Cllr Appleyard stated that he would discuss this issue 
further with the accountants. 
 
RESOLVED: To note the annual report of the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee.  
 

21    DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT TO COUNCIL FROM THE CHARITABLE TRUST 
BOARD  
 
The Board considered its draft annual report for submission to full Council.  The 
report set out details of the Board’s work over the previous year.  The Board 
currently only oversees one Charitable Trust relating to Alice Park. 
 
Nick Allen, a member of the public, expressed concern about the lack of 
representation for local people at the Alice Park Trust Sub-Committee meetings.  He 
felt that the process could be more inclusive.  He also mentioned the report from the 
Bath Area Play Project which had not been made available to him. 
 
The Legal Services Manager explained that the Sub-Committee operates under the 
rules of the Council Constitution.  There is provision for public speaking at the 
beginning of the meeting; however, ad hoc comments cannot be taken during the 
debate. 
 
Cllr Appleyard stated that he understood the passion people had for the park and 
welcomed public input.  However, the meeting had to run to the agreed process to 
enable the members to make decisions on matters put before them.  He explained 
that the Bath Area Play Project report was a private piece of work which has not 
been considered by the Sub-Committee. 
 
Members then discussed whether to retain the role of an independent member on 
the Charitable Trust Board.  On balance members felt that the role should remain, 
even if the post remained vacant as someone may come forward who wishes to 
become involved. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

(1) To approve the report for submission to full Council subject to the deletion of 
the recommendation to remove the role of independent member from the 
Board’s Terms of Reference. 
 

Page 8



 

 
5 

Charitable Trust Board- Wednesday, 29th January, 2020 

 

(2) To agree that the role of independent member on the Board remain vacant 
and that this be advertised at a later date. 

 
22    DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

 
The Board agreed to meet in early July and asked the Democratic Services Officer to 
consult on suitable dates. 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 4.00 pm  
 

Chair(person)  

 
Date Confirmed and Signed  

 
Prepared by Democratic Services 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Alice Park Trust. 

Administrative Issues 

Introduction 

This discussion document is presented because, recently, there seems to have been confusion over 

the role of Bath and North East Somerset Council and the Appointed Trustees regarding the 

administration of Alice Park and the decision-taking process. This concern has been heightened by 

the fact that there have been a number of issues raised with both the Charities Commission and the 

local Charitable Trust Board relating to Alice Park.  

It would be helpful to seek clarification so that decisions are taken in accordance with the law and 

associated guidance contained in the following: 

1. The original Trust documents: 

2. The revisions as required consequent upon the revisions of the Local Government in the 

Local Government Act 1972 

3. The provisions of the Charities Act 2011 and the Charities Act 2016 

4. Guidance both general and specific given by the Charities Commission as it relates to the 

Alice Park Trust. 

5. Guidance Issued by the Local Government Association relating to the administration of 

Trusts by Local Authorities. 

Clarifications 

1. Ownership of Alice Park 

According to the original Trust document, Mr. McVicar left the park in possession of the 

Trustees giving them the “uncontrolled” powers and responsibilities to apply the provisions 

laid out in paragraph 2 of the Trust Conveyance.   

The provisions laid out in in Local Government and Charities Law are there to support the 

Trust and Trustees in carrying out that obligation.  Advice and the provision of services by 

the Council is there solely to support the Trustees in discharging their responsibilities.  Such 

support is very welcome both practically and financially. 

Confusion arises because the council’s logo appears on many notices displayed in the park 

giving the impression that the park is their responsibility.  This confusion could be resolved 

by two measures: 

a. That all notices posted relating to the discharge of the Trust’s functions should be in the 

name of the Trust. 

b.  That all notices displayed on park premises and environment should be authorized by 

the Trust. 

 

2. The Role of Trustees. 

The 1972 Local Government Act makes it Clear that all voting Trustees must be elected 

members of the local authority.  However, guidance from several sources is that in carrying 

out their responsibilities they must act solely in the interests of the Trust. 

/continued 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



The main issue to be clarified is: 

a. Any elected member has to accept that, in taking decisions on what is best for the Trust 

(where they represent the beneficiaries of the Trust) there may be a conflict of interest 

with decisions taken on overall council policy. 

b. If only elected members can be represented on working committees of the Trust, they 

are in danger of either being promoters of council policy which may conflict with Charity 

Commission guidelines, or if they withdraw, they ensure thar the committee is inquorate 

and unable to function. In retaining overall responsibility, The Charitable Trust Board 

needs to consider practical ways of allowing the Alice Park Trust to operate. 

 

3. Responsibilities of Trustees. 

The Trust document imposing requirements and prohibitions on Trustees is part of the 

conveyance of Alice Park. 

Briefly summarized the requirements and prohibitions are: 

a.  to recognise Alice McVicar’s birthday (November 27th.) by flying flags in the park at 

half-mast and laying a wreath on her grave in Batheaston Churchyard, 

b. Not to erect any building or structure in the park other than for the purposes of the 

park, 

c. To reserve 4 acres of the park exclusively for the use of those under 15 years old. 

d. The remainder of the park to be open to the public subject to such times and 

purposes that the Trustees decide 

e. The park should NOT be used for any religious or political purpose of any kind. 

The trust can accept donations and raise charges for sports related activities.  

It can enter into financial and other arrangements that will benefit the park. 

Historically, the administration of park has not complied fully with these requirements and 

recently the Charities Commission has had to remind the Council and the Trustees of their 

obligations. 

However, there has been and continues to be much that is good and innovative in the 

administration of Alice Park. 

The following matters do need to be addressed by Trustees: 

• The correct accounting and reporting procedures, as required by the Charities 

Commission. 

• Ensuring that the Trust is on a secure financial base 

• Meeting the Trust’s obligations in respect of children.  This would include more 

detailed requirements in relation to Safeguarding under Child Protection legislation. 

• Meeting the overall requirements placed upon the Trustees under Health and Safety 

and Public Protection legislation. 

To achieve this clarification, the role of Trustees needs to be detailed; decisions need to be 

taken and measures implemented, to promote a facility appreciated both by the residents of 

Bath and also by visitors from a wide area. 

Graham Page – Independent Member.  

Page 12


	Agenda
	6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	8 Alice Park - Administrative Issues

